
 
 
 
 
 
 Please ask for: 

 Linda Coote 
 Direct dial: 

 (023) 9254 5340 
 Fax: 
 (023) 9254 5587 
 E-mail: 

  
  

14 September 2022 
 

S U M M O N S 
 
MEETING: Standards & Audit Sub Board 
DATE: 22 September 2022 

TIME: On the conclusion of the Extraordinary P&O Board but not before 6.30 pm 
PLACE:  
Democratic Services contact: Linda Coote 
 
 
 
 
PAUL GRANT 
BOROUGH SOLICITOR AND MONITORING OFFICER 

 
MEMBERS OF THE BOARD 

 
 

  
  

 
 

  
 

  
 

 
 

Public Document Pack



 
FIRE PRECAUTIONS 

 
(To be read by the Mayor if members of the public are present) 

 
In the event of the fire alarm sounding, please leave the room immediately. Proceed 
downstairs by way of the main stairs or as directed by GBC staff, follow any of the emergency 
exit signs. People with disability or mobility issues please identify yourself to GBC staff who 
will assist in your evacuation of the building. 
 

IMPORTANT NOTICE: 
 

 If you are in a wheelchair or have difficulty in walking and require 
access to the Committee Room on the First Floor of the Town Hall 
for this meeting, assistance can be provided by Town Hall staff on 
request. 

 
If you require any of the services detailed above please ring the Direct Line 
for the Democratic Services Officer listed on the Summons (first page). 

 
NOTE: 
 

i. Councillors are requested to note that, if any Councillor who is not a Member of the Board 
wishes to speak at the Board meeting, then the Borough Solicitor is required to receive 
not less than 24 hours prior notice in writing or electronically and such notice shall 
indicate the agenda item or items on which the member wishes to speak.  

 

ii. Please note that mobile phones should be switched off or switched to silent for the duration 
of the meeting. 

 

iii. This meeting may be filmed or otherwise recorded. By attending this meeting, you are 

consenting to any broadcast of your image and being recorded.  

 
 



Standards & Audit Sub Board 
22 September 2022 

 
 

 
AGENDA 

 

   

1.   APOLOGIES FOR NON ATTENDANCE   

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 All members are required to disclose at this point in the meeting, or 
as soon as possible thereafter, any disclosable pecuniary interest or 
personal interest in any item(s) being considered at this meeting. 
 

 

3.   MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE SUB BOARD HELD ON 30 
JUNE 2022 (Pages 5 - 8) 

 

4.   DEPUTATIONS- STANDING ORDER 3.4   

 (NOTE: The Board is required to receive a deputation(s) on a matter 
which is before the meeting of the Board provided that notice of the 
intended deputation and its object shall have been received by the 
Borough Solicitor by 12 noon on Tuesday 13th September. The total 
time for deputations in favour and against a proposal shall not 
exceed 10 minutes)  
 

 

5.   PUBLIC QUESTIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.5   

 (NOTE: The Board is required to allow a total of 15 minutes for 
questions from Members of the public on matters within the terms of 
reference of the Board provided that notice of such Question(s) shall 
have been submitted to the Borough Solicitor by 12 noon on 
Tuesday 13th September) 
 

 

6.   AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 1ST APRIL TO 19TH AUGUST 2022 
(Pages 9 - 22) 

 

 To update the committee on the progress of the Audit Plan 
2022/23, agreed (June 2022), to the Members with 
responsibility for governance. 

 

 

7.   AUDITORS ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21 (Pages 23 - 66)  

 The Auditor’s Annual Report summarises the findings from our 
2020/21 audit which was completed in March. It summarises the key 
messages that were reported in our Audit Results Report presented 
to the Policy and Organisation Board on 17 March 2022. Our 
Auditor’s Annual Report is an important report that has been 

 



Standards & Audit Sub Board 
22 September 2022 

 
 

prepared in line with the requirements of the National Audit Office’s 
Code of Audit Practice.  
 

8.   GIFTS & HOSPITALITY RETURN FOR COUNCIL STAFF (Pages 
67 - 68) 

 

 To advise the Sub-Board of the Gifts and Hospitality declared by 
Council Staff for the period April 2021- March 2022. 
 

 

9.   LOCAL GOVERNMENT OMBUDSMAN REVIEW 2021/22 (Pages 
69 - 74) 

 

 To advise the Sub Board of the Annual Review Letter 2022 received 
from the Local Government Ombudsman. 
 

 

10.   ANY OTHER ITEMS   

 



Standards & Audit Sub Board 
30 June 2022 

 

1 

A MEETING OF THE STANDARDS & AUDIT SUB BOARD 
WAS HELD ON 30 JUNE 2022 

 
 
 
Councillors Chegwyn (Substituting for Pepper), Mrs Cully, Hylands, Marshall and Raffaelli 
 
 
1. ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN AND VICE CHAIRMAN  
 
RESOLVED: That Councillor Martin Pepper be elected as Chairman and Councillor 
Stephen Marshall be elected as Deputy Chairman for the Municipal Year 2022-23. 
 
2. APOLOGIES FOR NON ATTENDANCE  
 
Apologies for non attendance were received from Councillor Pepper who was substituted 
by Councillor Chegwyn. 
 
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were none 
 
4. DEPUTATIONS- STANDING ORDER 3.4  
 
There were none.  
 
5. PUBLIC QUESTIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.5  
 
There were none.  
 
6. INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL AUDIT OPINION 2021/22 AND UPDATE AUDIT 

STRATEGY  
 

Consideration was given to a report of the Chief Internal Auditor tabling the Annual Audit 
Opinion for 2021/22 for noting to the Members with responsibility for governance, as set 
out in Appendix A and to present the reviewed Audit Strategy to the board for approval, 
as set out in Appendix B. 
 
 
The Chief Internal Auditor introduced his report. 
 
The council is required to produce an annual audit opinion on the internal control 
framework on an annual basis and this opinion which will subsequently form part of the 
Annual Governance Statement. This report is the culmination of the audit work that was 
conducted as part of the 2021/22 audit plan which is used to determine the opinion 
given. As noted in section 2 of the report, the annual opinion remains at Reasonable 
Assurance. Results have shown an increase in the number of audits achieving full or 
reasonable assurance however the number of exceptions found has increased however 
it is worth noting that a higher number of audits/grant work was completed in this 
financial year. 

 

Public Document Pack

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



Standards & Audit Sub Board 
30 June 2022 

 

2 

One area of concern that I'd like to highlight is the completion of the agreed actions 
stemming from previous audit reports with only 29% being fully completed. For 
reference for those members who may not have seen audit reports previously, if an 
audit highlights any high risk exceptions, we conduct a follow up audit in the next 
financial year to review if the action to address the risk has been addressed.  
 
Due to this low level of completion, we will now conduct 2nd follow ups on areas where 
the first follow up has highlighted that areas remain open or in progress. In addition, 
open exceptions will also be highlighted to the corporate governance group. 
 
Also included in the report is the results of any audits which were completed after the 
last standards and governance report. 

 
In answer to a Members question the Chief Internal Auditor explained that there were 
still covid related grants being administered, and therefore discussions would take place 
to help decide priorities including audit work. 
 
Members were advised that there would be a full audit on procurement that would last 
approx. 10 days and would be starting from scratch and subject to the second follow up 
checks. 
 
Members were keen that the Contract Procedure Rules were adhered to and felt it was 
essential to ensure all contracts were above board. A Member suggested that 
discussions should take place with the staff that use the procurement system on a 
regular basis to find out how they were managing. 
 
Members were advised that a second follow up to the Leisure Centre audit would be 
reported back and that the FOI/SAR system is in good shape. 
 
The Chief Internal Auditor explained that deadline dates are set after consultation with 
the sections, encouraging them to take ownership of the actions. The section could then 
advise if they felt they were not going to meet the deadline and why. It was felt it was 
better to delay the audit than carry it out when there was no chance of the actions being 
completed. 
 
Members were reassured that there was resilience in the staffing should it be affected 
by covid, as due to the partnership we could pull in resources from PCC, which of 
course would come at a cost. 
 
 
A Member wished to give a vote of thanks to the Chief Internal Auditor and his team, 
and recognise the amount of work that has been achieved despite the additional work 
connected with getting money to those who need it most. 
 
 
 
RESOLVED: The Members noted the Annual Audit Opinion 2021/22, in Appendix A. 
 
The Members approved the updated Audit Strategy, as set out in Appendix B. 

 
7. ANY OTHER ITEMS  

Page 6



Standards & Audit Sub Board 
30 June 2022 

 

3 

 
There were no other items 
 
 

CHAIRMAN 
 

 
Concluded at 6.20 pm 

 
 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Purpose 
 

To update the committee on the progress of the Audit Plan 2022/23, agreed (June 2022), to 
the Members with responsibility for governance. 

 
 

Recommendations 
 

a. That the Standards and Audit Sub Board note the progress of the Audit Plan 2022/23 
from 1st April 2022 - 19th August 2022. 
 
 

1. Background & Purpose 
 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide the Standards and Audit Sub Board with an overview 
of internal audit activity against assurance work completed in accordance with the approved 
internal audit plan. Members of this Committee approved the 2022/23 Annual Audit in June 2022 
which consisted of 36 audit assignments initially.   

.  
2. Report 

 
2.1 Appendix A is the Audit Progress Report 1st April - 19th August 2022. 

  
3. Conclusion 

 
3.1 That the Committee note the Audit Progress against the 2022/23 Audit Plan. 

 
 

Financial Services 
comments: 

Nil 

Legal Services comments: Nil 

Crime and Disorder: Nil 

Equality and Diversity: Nil 

Service Improvement Plan 
implications: 

The delivery of the annual audit plan is a key function of the 
service. 

Corporate Plan: It supports the Council in pursuit of excellence through 
delivering an effective and high quality governance evaluation 
and monitoring. 

Risk Assessment: The work performed by Internal Audit assists in reducing the 
overall risk exposure in the Council’s operations and provides a 
high degree of assurance to management in placing reliance on 
the adequacy of internal controls within their Services 

Background papers: None 

Appendices/Enclosures: Appendix A – Audit Progress Report 1st April - 19th August 2022 

Report author/ Lead 
Officer: 

Paul Somerset - Chief Internal Auditor 

Board/Committee: Standards and Audit Sub Board 

Date of Meeting: 15th September 2022 

Title: Audit Progress Report to 1st April to 19th August 2022 

Author: Chief Internal Auditor 

Status: FOR NOTING 

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



 

Page 10



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Internal Audit Progress Report 15th September 2022 

Paul Somerset, Chief Internal Auditor 

 

P
age 11



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t  

 

Page 2 
Gosport Borough Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was internally assessed in May 2020  

1. I n t r o d u c t i o n   

 

Internal Audit is a statutory function for all local authorities.  

The requirement for an Internal Audit function in local government is detailed within the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015 as to: 

 

Undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, control and governance 
processes, taking into account public sector internal auditing standards or guidance 

 
The standards for ‘proper practices’ are laid down in the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards [the Standards – updated 2016]. 

Internal auditing is an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed to add value and improve an organisation’s operations. It helps an 

organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management, control 

and governance processes 

This report includes the status against the 2022/23 internal audit plan. 

 

 
 

 

 

 

P
age 12



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t  

 

Page 3 
Gosport Borough Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was internally assessed in May 2020  

2 .  A u d i t  P l a n  P r o g r e s s  a s  o f  1 9 t h  A u g u s t  2 0 2 2  

 

There are 36 audits in the Audit Plan for 2022/23. 

To date, 8 (22%) have been issued, 2 (6%) are in draft report and 3 (8%) are work in progress. Progress against the plan is at a good level for the time of year 

and there are currently no concerns that the audit plan will not be complete. 

 

 

S t a t u s  A u d i t s  

Identified 23 

Fieldwork 3 

Draft Report 2 

Issued 8 
 

 
 
 

64% 8% 

6% 

22% 

Audit Plan Progress as of 19th August 
2022 

Identified

Fieldwork

Draft

Issued

P
age 13



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t  

 

Page 4 
Gosport Borough Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was internally assessed in May 2020  

3 .  O n g o i n g  I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  I n v o l v e m e n t  /  C o v i d  u p d a t e   
 
COVID-19 
Internal Audit remain involved in assisting the Council with the administration of Covid related grants while also performing assurance work on the grants 
as and when required by central government. Some grants are built into the audit plan but any new grant related work that is required will be added to the 
plan. 
 
 
Internal Audit has provided advice, ongoing reviews and involvement work in the following areas. (For reference, advice is only recorded when the time 
taken to provide the advice exceeds one hour): 
 

 Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act (RIPA) - authorisations (if applicable) and policy review 

 Anti-Money Laundering - policy review 

 National Fraud Initiative (NFI) to facilitate national data matching carried out by the Cabinet Office 

 National Anti-Fraud Network (NAFN) bulletins and intelligence follow up 

 Standards and Audit Sub Board - reporting and attendance  

 Audit Planning and Consultation 

 Risk Management & Annual Governance Statement  
 
 

 
 

4 .  A u d i t  P l a n  S t a t u s / C h a n g e s  
 

No changes to the plan since the last meeting. 

5 .  A r e a s  o f  C o n c e r n   
 

No new areas of concern since the last meeting. 

P
age 14



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t  

 

Page 5 
Gosport Borough Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was internally assessed in May 2020  

 

6. A s s u r a n c e  L e v e l s  
 

Internal Audit reviews culminate in an opinion on the assurance that can be placed on the effectiveness of the framework of risk management, control and 

governance designed to support the achievement of management objectives for the area under review. 

 

Audits rated No Assurance are specifically highlighted to the Standards and Governance Committee along with 
any Section Head comments. The Committee is able to request any director attends a meeting to discuss the 

issues. 

 

 

A s s u r a n c e  L e v e l  D e s c r i p t i o n  /  E x a m p l e s  

Assurance 
No issues or minor improvements noted within the audit but based on the testing conducted, assurance can be placed 
that the activity is of low risk to the Authority 

Reasonable Assurance Control weaknesses or risks were identified but overall the activities do not pose significant risks to the Authority 

Limited Assurance Control weaknesses or risks were identified which pose a more significant risk to the Authority 

No Assurance 
Major individual issues identified or collectively a number of issues raised which could significantly impact the overall 
objectives of the activity that was subject to the Audit 

NAT No areas tested 

P
age 15



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t  

 

Page 6 
Gosport Borough Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was internally assessed in May 2020  

7 .  E x c e p t i o n  R i s k  R a n k i n g  
 

The following table outline the exceptions raised in audit reports, reported in priority order and are broadly equivalent to those previously used. 

 

 

Any critical exceptions found the will be reported in their entirety to the Standards and Audit Sub Board along with Section Head 
comments 

P r i o r i t y  L e v e l  D e s c r i p t i o n  

Low Risk 
(Improvement) 

Very low risk exceptions or recommendations that are classed as improvements that are intended to help the service fine tune its control 
framework or improve service effectiveness and efficiency.  An example of an improvement recommendation would be making changes to a filing 
system to improve the quality of the management trail.  

Medium Risk These are control weaknesses that may expose the system function or process to a key risk but the likelihood of the risk occurring is low.  

High Risk 

Action needs to be taken to address significant control weaknesses but over a reasonable timeframe rather than immediately.  These issues are 
not ‘show stopping’ but are still important to ensure that controls can be relied upon for the effective performance of the service or function.  If 
not addressed, they can, over time, become critical.  An example of an important exception would be the introduction of controls to detect and 
prevent fraud.  

Critical Risk 
Control weakness that could have a significant impact upon not only the system function or process objectives but also the achievement of the 
Council’s objectives in relation to: The efficient and effective use of resources, The safeguarding of assets, The preparation of reliable financial and 
operational information, Compliance with laws and regulations and corrective action needs to be taken immediately. 

P
age 16



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t  

 

Page 7 
Gosport Borough Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was internally assessed in May 2020  

 

8 .   2 0 2 2 / 2 3  A u d i t s  c o m p l e t e d  s i n c e  l a s t  m e e t i n g   
Housing Rents - Housing  

Exceptions Raised 

Critical High Medium Low 

0 0 0 0 
 

Overall Assurance Level 

 Assurance  

 
 

Assurance Level by Scope Area 

Achievement of Strategic Objectives  NAT  

Compliance with Policies, Laws & Regulations Assurance 

Safeguarding of Assets Assurance 

Effectiveness and Efficiency of Operations NAT 

Reliability and Integrity of Data Assurance 
 

No issues arose during the audit. 

 

Parks - Streetscene 

Exceptions Raised 

Critical High Medium Low 

0 0 2 0 
 

Overall Assurance Level 

 Reasonable Assurance   

 
Agreed actions are scheduled to be 

implemented by December 2022 

Assurance Level by Scope Area 

Achievement of Strategic Objectives  Reasonable Assurance  

Compliance with Policies, Laws & Regulations Assurance 

Safeguarding of Assets NAT 

Effectiveness and Efficiency of Operations Reasonable Assurance 

Reliability and Integrity of Data NAT 
 

The exceptions relate to an outdated inspection policy and evidence relating to play park repairs. 

 

 

P
age 17



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t  

 

Page 8 
Gosport Borough Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was internally assessed in May 2020  

Purchase Cards - Finance 

Exceptions Raised 

Critical High Medium Low 

0 0 0 1 
 

Overall Assurance Level 

 Assurance   

 
Agreed actions are scheduled to be 

implemented by August 2022 

Assurance Level by Scope Area 

Achievement of Strategic Objectives  NAT  

Compliance with Policies, Laws & Regulations Assurance 

Safeguarding of Assets Assurance 

Effectiveness and Efficiency of Operations NAT 

Reliability and Integrity of Data NAT 
 

The one exception was raised in relation to a lack of purchase card within IT services which creates inefficient purchasing process. 

 

Test and Trace Grant 
 

Overall Assurance Level 

 Assurance   

 
 

 

The grant was signed off as in compliance with the Grant Criteria 

Omicron Business Grant 
 

Overall Assurance Level 

 Assurance   

 
 

 

The grant was signed off as in compliance with the Grant Criteria 

 

 

P
age 18



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t  

 

Page 9 
Gosport Borough Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was internally assessed in May 2020  

9 .  F o l l o w - u p  A c t i o n  C a t e g o r i s a t i o n  

 
The following table outlines the follow up categories used to describe the outcome of follow up testing completed. 
 

 

 
 

 

F o l l o w  U p  C a t e g o r i e s  D e s c r i p t i o n  

Open No action has been taken on agreed action.  

Pending Actions cannot be taken at the current time but steps have been taken to prepare.  

In Progress Progress has been made on the agreed action however they have not been completed. 

Implemented but not Effective Agreed action implemented but not effective in mitigating the risk. 

Closed: Verified Agreed action implemented and risk mitigated, verified by follow up testing. 

Closed: Not Verified Client has stated action has been completed but unable to verify via testing. 

Closed: Management Accepts 
Risk 

Management has accepted the risk highlighted from the exception. 

Closed: No Longer Applicable Risk exposure no longer applicable.  

P
age 19



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t  

 

Page 10 
Gosport Borough Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was internally assessed in May 2020  

Absence Management Follow Up - HR  

Original Exceptions Raised 

Critical High Medium Low 

0 1 2 0 
 

Latest implementation date 
scheduled during the original audit 
was in February 2022. 

Original Assurance Level  Follow-up Assurance Level 

Limited Assurance  Reasonable Assurance 
 

  Follow Up Action 

Open Pending In Progress Implemented but Not 
Effective 

Closed: 
Verified 

Closed: Not 
Verified  

Closed: Management 
Accepts Risks 

Closed: No Longer 
Applicable 

0 0 1 (Medium) 0 2 (1 High ,1 
Medium)  

0 0 0 

 

The 'in progress' exception relates to absence reporting with regards to sickness. GBC has recently moved to a new system for recording/managing sickness 

and absence 

Enforcement Follow Up - Streetscene  

Original Exceptions Raised 

Critical High Medium Low 

0 1 1 1 
 

Latest implementation date 
scheduled during the original audit 
was in April 2022. 

Original Assurance Level  Follow-up Assurance Level 

Reasonable Assurance  Assurance 
 

  Follow Up Action 

Open Pending In Progress Implemented but Not 
Effective 

Closed: 
Verified 

Closed: Not 
Verified  

Closed: Management 
Accepts Risks 

Closed: No Longer 
Applicable 

0 0 1 (Medium) 0 2 (1 High, 1 
Low)  

0 0 0 

 

The 'in progress' exception relates to the updating of the enforcement policy which is due to be presented to board in the coming months. 

 

 

P
age 20



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t  

 

Page 11 
Gosport Borough Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was internally assessed in May 2020  

Governance 2nd Follow Up - Executive   

Original Exceptions Raised 

Critical High Medium Low 

0 0 3 2 
 

Latest implementation date 
scheduled during the 1

st
 Follow Up 

audit was in Feb 2022. 

1st Follow Up Assurance 
Level 

 2nd Follow-up Assurance 
Level 

Reasonable Assurance  Reasonable Assurance 
 

  Follow Up Action 

Open Pending In Progress Implemented but Not 
Effective 

Closed: 
Verified 

Closed: Not 
Verified  

Closed: Management 
Accepts Risks 

Closed: No Longer 
Applicable 

0 0 3 (Medium) 0 0  0 0 0 
 

The 'in progress' exceptions relate to the councils objectives and how they are monitored. The delay in completing these has been as a result of the change 

in administration and the need to set new objectives. 

 

 

1 0 .  A u d i t s  i n  D r a f t  t o  d a t e  ( 1 9 t h  A u g u s t  2 0 2 2 )  

 
Audit Directorate  Draft Since Projected Issue Date Revised Comments 

Asbestos Housing August 2022 August 2022 N/A N/A 

Gas Safety Checks Housing August 2022 August 2022 N/A N/A 

 
 

P
age 21



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t  

 

Page 12 
Gosport Borough Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was internally assessed in May 2020  

1 1 .  A u d i t s  i n  P r o g r e s s  t o  D a t e  ( 1 9 t h  A u g u s t  2 0 2 2 )  

 

 

Audit 
Directorate  Delayed 

Projected Issued 
Date 

Revised Issued 
Date Comments 

Legionella Housing N/A September 2022   

Urbaser Contract Streetscene N/A September 2022   

Community 
Infrastructure Levy 

Planning  N/A September 2022 
  

Procurement Corporate N/A September 2022   

P
age 22



1 
 

Board/Committee: Standards and Audit Sub Board Meeting 
 

Date of Meeting: 15 September 2022 

Title: EY – Auditor’s Annual Report 2020/21 

Author: Kevin Suter 

Status:  Standards and Audit Sub Board to consider and 
note the 2020/21 Auditor’s Annual Report 

  
Purpose 
  
The Auditor’s Annual Report summarises the findings from our 2020/21 
audit which was completed in March. It summarises the key messages that 
were reported in our Audit Results Report presented to the Policy and 
Organisation Board on 17 March 2022. Our Auditor’s Annual Report is an 
important report that has been prepared in line with the requirements of the 
National Audit Office’s Code of Audit Practice.  
 
 
Recommendation 
  

 Receive the Auditor’s Annual Report and consider the conclusions 
reached by the auditor. 

 
  

1 Background 
  

1.1 
 

The National Audit Office’s Code of Audit Practice 
requires us to issue an Auditor’s Annual Report 
summarising the work we have carried out to discharge 
our statutory audit responsibilities.  

 
  

2 Annual Audit Letter 
  

2.1 
 
 
 

2.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Financial statements 
We issued an unqualified audit opinion on 18 March 
2022. 
 
Value for money conclusion 
We reported evidence of weaknesses in proper 
arrangements for: 
• ensuring appropriate governance in the 

procurement of services by making informed 
decisions and properly managing its risks; and 
ensuring it can demonstrate compliance with 
appropriate legislative requirements, professional 
standards, and internal policies. 

• improving economy, efficiency, and effectiveness 
by assessing whether it is realising the expected 
benefits when procuring services. 

Page 23

Agenda Item 7



2 
 

 
 

2.3 
 
 
 

2.4 
 

 
 
2.5 

 
 
 

2.6 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

2.7 
 
 
 

2.8 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

           Consistency of other information 
Other information published with the financial statements 
was consistent with the Annual Accounts. 
.  
Annual Governance Statement 
The Annual Governance Statement was consistent with 
our understanding of the Council. 
 
Use of audit powers 
There were no matters that we needed to report in the 
public interest or take formal audit action on.  
 
Whole of government accounts 
We have performed the procedures required by the 
National Audit Office on the Whole of Government  
Accounts submission. However, the NAO WGA team will 
consider the revised HM Treasury thresholds alongside 
HM Treasury's developing analytical review controls and 
may determine assurances from auditors of components 
who are below these revised HM Treasury thresholds. 
 
Report to those charged with governance 
We presented our Audit Results Report to the Policy and 
Organisation Board on 17 March 2022.  
 
Audit certificate 
We have performed the procedures required by the 
National Audit Office on the Whole of Government 
Accounts (WGA) submission. However, the rights and 
requirements of the NAO can extend beyond the revised 
thresholds of £2bn set by HM Treasury, which do not 
prejudice the rights of the NAO. As group auditor, the 
NAO WGA team will consider the revised HM Treasury 
thresholds alongside HM Treasury's developing 
analytical review controls and may require assurances 
from auditors of components who are below the HM 
Treasury thresholds. 
 
The change for 2020/21 is that in previous periods the 
existence of the HM Treasury thresholds has meant that 
in many instances the work that the NAO WGA team 
would have otherwise directed non-significant 
components to undertake in line with ISA 600 had 
already been carried out. The increase in HM Treasury’s 
local government threshold means that there is a risk the 
NAO WGA team require some assurances from auditors 
of bodies below the new limit. Consequently, we cannot 
issue our certificate for 2020/21 until confirmation on the 

Page 24



3 
 

 
 

 
3 

 
3.1 

 
 

 
4 

 
4.1 
 

above-mentioned has been received from the NAO. 
 

 
Risk Assessment 

 
The Auditor’s Annual Report forms part of the auditor’s 
statutory role and should be reviewed as part of the 
Council’s governance arrangements. 

 
Conclusion 

 
The Auditor’s Annual Report for 2020/21 is attached for 
consideration and noting. 
 
 

  

Financial Services comments: The Auditor’s Annual Report was 
shared with finance officers for 
comment before being finalised. 

Legal Services comments: N/A 

Crime and Disorder: N/A 

Equality and Diversity: N/A 

Service Improvement Plan 
implications: 

N/A 

Corporate Plan: N/A 

Risk Assessment: N/A 

Background papers: N/A 

Enclosures: Auditor’s Annual Report 2020/21 
GBC Procurement Action Plan 

Report author/ Lead Officer: Kevin Suter, Partner, Ernst & Young 

 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Gosport Borough Council

May 2022

Auditor’s Annual Report 

Year ended 31 March 2021

Page 27



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Contents

Gosport Borough Council 1

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) issued the “Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies”. It is available from the PSAA 
website (https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-quality/statement-of-responsibilities/)).The Statement of responsibilities serves as the formal terms of 
engagement between appointed auditors and audited bodies. It summarises where the different responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies begin 
and end, and what is to be expected of the audited body in certain areas. 
The “Terms of Appointment and further guidance (updated April 2018)” issued by the PSAA sets out additional requirements that auditors must comply 
with, over and above those set out in the National Audit Office Code of Audit Practice (the Code) and in legislation, and covers matters of practice and 
procedure which are of a recurring nature.
This report is made solely to the Policy & Organisation Board and management of Gosport Borough Council in accordance with the statement of 
responsibilities. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Policy & Organisation Board and management of Gosport Borough 
Council those matters we are required to state to them in this report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law we do not accept 
or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Policy & Organisation Board and management of Gosport Borough Council for this report or for the 
opinions we have formed. It should not be provided to any third-party without our prior written consent.
Our Complaints Procedure – If at any time you would like to discuss with us how our service to you could be improved, or if you are dissatisfied with the 
service you are receiving, you may take the issue up with your usual partner or director contact. If you prefer an alternative route, please contact Hywel 
Ball, our Managing Partner, 1 More London Place, London SE1 2AF. We undertake to look into any complaint carefully and promptly and to do all we 
can to explain the position to you. Should you remain dissatisfied with any aspect of our service, you may of course take matters up with our 
professional institute. We can provide further information on how you may contact our professional institute.

Section Page

01 - Executive Summary 02

02 - Purpose and responsibilities 05

03 - Financial statements audit 07

04 - Value for Money 12

05 – Other reporting issues 30

Appendix 1 – Fees 32

Page 28



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Section 1

Executive Summary

Page 29



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Executive Summary: Key conclusions from our 2020/21 audit

Gosport Borough Council 3

Area of work Conclusion

Opinion on the Council’s:

Financial statements Unqualified – the financial statements give a true and fair view of 
the financial position of the Council as at 31 March 2021 and of its 
expenditure and income for the year then ended. The financial 
statements have been prepared properly in accordance with the 
CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting 
in the United Kingdom 2020/21.
We issued our auditor’s report on 18 March 2022.

Going concern We have concluded that the Borough Treasurer & Section 151 
Officer’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the 
preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Consistency of the Statement of 
Accounts 2020/21 and other 
information published with the 
financial statements 

Financial information in the Statement of Accounts 2020/21 and 
published with the financial statements was consistent with the 
audited accounts.

Area of work Conclusion

Reports by exception:

Value for money (VFM) We identified a significant weakness in relation to the 
‘Governance’ and ‘Improving Economy, Efficiency & 
Effectiveness’ criteria and therefore reported by exception on the 
Council’s VFM arrangements in the audit report on the financial 
statements. 
We have included our VFM commentary in Section 04.

Consistency of the annual 
governance statement

We were satisfied that the annual governance statement was 
consistent with our understanding of the Council.

Public interest report and other 
auditor powers

We had no reason to use our auditor powers.

Page 30



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Executive Summary: Key conclusions from our 2020/21 audit

Gosport Borough Council 4

As a result of the work we carried out we have also:

Outcomes Conclusion

Issued a report to those charged with 
governance of the Council 
communicating significant findings 
resulting from our audit.

We issued an Audit Results Report dated 8 March 2022 to the
Policy & Organisation Board. 

Issued a certificate that we have 
completed the audit in accordance 
with the requirements of the Local 
Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and 
the National Audit Office’s 2020 Code 
of Audit Practice.

We have not yet issued our certificate for 2020/21 as we have not 
yet performed the procedures required by the National Audit Office 
on the Whole of Government Accounts submission. The guidance 
for 2020/21 is delayed, and is not expected until later in 2022.

Fees

We carried out our audit of the Council’s financial statements in line with PSAA Ltd’s “Statement of 
Responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies” and “Terms of Appointment and  further guidance 
(updated April 2018)”. As outlined in the Audit Results Report we were required to carry out additional 
audit procedures to address audit risks in relation to valuation of property, plant and equipment, the 
valuation of pension fund liabilities and determining the appropriateness of the actuarial model design, 
reviewing the accuracy and appropriateness of the Council’s accounting for Covid-19 related grant funding, 
and the VFM arrangements for ‘Governance’ and ‘Improving Economy, Efficiency & Effectiveness’. 
Consequently, we intend to agree an associated additional fee with the Borough Treasurer & Section 151 
Officer, which will then be presented to the PSAA for determination. We include details of the final audit 
fees in Appendix 1.

We would like to take this opportunity to thank the Council staff for their assistance during the course of our 
work. 

Kevin Suter

Associate Partner
For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP

Page 31



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Section 2

Purpose and 
responsibilities

Page 32



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Purpose and responsibilities

Gosport Borough Council 6

Purpose

The purpose of the auditor’s annual report is to bring together all of the auditor’s 
work over the year. A core element of the report is the commentary on VFM 
arrangements, which aims to draw to the attention of the Council or the wider 
public relevant issues, recommendations arising from the audit and follow-up of 
recommendations issued previously, along with the auditor’s view as to whether 
they have been implemented satisfactorily.

Responsibilities of the appointed auditor

We have undertaken our 2020/21 audit work in accordance with the Audit Plan 
that we issued on 16 July 2022. We have complied with the NAO's 2020 Code of 
Audit Practice, International Standards on Auditing (UK), and other guidance 
issued by the NAO. 

As auditors we are responsible for:

Expressing an opinion on:

• The 2020/21 financial statements; 

• Conclusions relating to going concern; and

• The consistency of other information published with the financial statements, 
including the annual report.

Reporting by exception:

• If the governance statement does not comply with relevant guidance or is not 
consistent with our understanding of the Council;

• If we identify a significant weakness in the Council’s arrangements in place to 
secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources; and

• Any significant matters that are in the public interest.

Responsibilities of the Council

The Council is responsible for preparing and publishing its financial statements 
and governance statement. It is also responsible for putting in place proper 
arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 
resources.

This report summarises 
our audit work on the 
2020/21 financial 
statements.

Page 33



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Section 3

Financial Statement 
Audit

Page 34



Ref: EY-000092651-01
Gosport Borough Council 8

Financial Statement Audit

Key issues

The Statement of Accounts is an important tool for the Council to show how it 
has used public money and how it can demonstrate its financial management 
and financial health. 

On 18 March 2022, we issued an unqualified opinion on the financial 
statements. We reported our detailed findings to the 17 March 2022 Policy & 
Organisation Board meeting. We outline below the key issues identified as 
part of our audit, reported against the significant risks and other areas of audit 
focus we included in our Audit Plan.

Financial Statement Audit

We have issued an 
unqualified audit opinion 
on the Council’s 2020/21 
financial statements.

Significant risk Conclusion

Misstatements due to fraud or error 
- management override of controls
An ever present risk that management 
is in a unique position to commit fraud 
because of its ability to manipulate 
accounting records directly or 
indirectly, and prepare fraudulent 
financial statements by overriding 
controls that otherwise appear to be 
operating effectively. 

We have not identified any material weaknesses in controls or 
evidence of material management override, instances of 
inappropriate judgements being applied; or any other transactions 
during our audit which appear unusual or outside the Council‘s 
normal course of business.

Inappropriate capitalisation of 
expenditure
Under ISA 240 there is a presumed 
risk that revenue may be misstated 
due to improper revenue recognition. 
In the public sector, this requirement is 
modified by Practice Note 10 issued 
by the Financial Reporting Council, 
which states that auditors should also 
consider the risk that material 
misstatements may occur by the 
manipulation of expenditure 
recognition. We have identified an 
opportunity and incentive to capitalise 
expenditure under the accounting 
framework, to remove it from the 
general fund. 

Our sample testing of additions to PPE:
• Found costs had been correctly classified as capital and included 

at the correct value. 
• Did not identify any revenue items that were incorrectly classified 

as capital.

Our review of judgements taken by management found them to be 
reasonable.

Continued over.

Page 35



Ref: EY-000092651-01
Gosport Borough Council 9

Financial Statement Audit

Significant Risk Conclusion

Valuation of land and buildings under 
Existing Use Value (EUV) and 
Investment Properties (IP) under Fair 
Value (FV)
Land and buildings is the most 
significant balance in the Council’s 
balance sheet. The valuation of land and 
buildings under EUV and IP under FV is 
complex and is subject to a number of 
assumptions and judgements. A small 
movement in these assumptions can 
have a material impact on the financial 
statements.

We are satisfied that the valuation of land & buildings in PPE 
under EUV and IP under FV are fairly stated and appropriately 
disclosed.

Other area of audit focus Conclusion

Valuation of land and buildings under 
Depreciated Replacement Cost (DRC) 
and Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 
properties
Land and buildings is the most 
significant balance in the Council’s 
balance sheet. The valuation of land and 
buildings under DRC and HRA requires 
a lesser degree of material judgemental 
inputs and apply estimation techniques 
to calculate these balances held in the 
balance sheet and HRA notes. Although 
there is still risk in the valuation of these 
assets, we believe it to be less than for 
the properties under EUV and FV as 
listed above.

We are satisfied that the valuation of land & buildings in PPE 
under DRC and HRA properties are fairly stated and appropriately 
disclosed.

In addition to the significant risks above, we also concluded on the following areas of audit focus.

Financial Statement Audit (continued)

Continued over.

Page 36



Ref: EY-000092651-01
Gosport Borough Council 10

Financial Statement Audit

Other area of audit focus Conclusion

Pension Asset and Liability valuation 
The Pension Fund asset and liability is a 
material balance in the Balance Sheet. 
Accounting for this scheme involves 
significant estimation and judgement and 
therefore management engages an 
actuary to undertake the calculations on 
their behalf. ISAs (UK and Ireland) 500 
and 540 require us to undertake 
procedures on the use of management 
experts and the assumptions underlying 
fair value estimates.

We modified our planned approach to address the requirements of 
the revised auditing standard on accounting estimates by testing 
the method of measurement of accounting estimates to determine 
whether the model is appropriately designed, consistently applied 
and mathematically accurate, and that the integrity of the 
assumptions and the data has been maintained in applying the 
model.

We have identified a misstatement in the pension fund assets of 
£1.6m which was subsequently corrected by management. 
Consequently, we are satisfied that the pension liability and asset 
valuation is fairly stated and appropriately disclosed.

Going concern disclosures
The Council is required to carry out an 
assessment of its ability to continue as a 
going concern for the foreseeable future, 
being at least 12 months after the date of 
the approval of the financial statements. 
There is a risk that the Council’s financial 
statements do not adequately disclose 
the assessment made, the assumptions 
used and the relevant risks and 
challenges that have impacted the going 
concern period. 

We have reviewed management’s going concern assessment and 
confirm their conclusion that the Council remains a going concern 
is based on reasonable and supportable assumptions.
We have also reviewed management’s going concern disclosure 
and confirmed it is sufficiently detailed, transparent and accurately 
reflects management’s underlying going concern assessment.

Accounting for Covid-19 related grant 
funding 
The Council received government 
funding in relation to Covid-19. Whilst 
there is no change in the CIPFA Code or 
accounting standard (IFRS 15) in 
respect of accounting for grant funding, 
the emergency nature of some of the 
grants received and in some cases the 
lack of clarity on any associated 
restrictions and conditions, means that 
the Council will need to apply a greater 
degree of assessment and judgement to 
determine the appropriate accounting 
treatment in 2020/21.

Based on our work, we are satisfied that the accounting treatment 
adopted for Covid-19 related government grants accorded with the 
Council’s assessment of whether it was acting as agent or 
principal, the underlying conditions of the grant and whether those 
conditions had been met.

Financial Statement Audit (continued)

Continued over.

Page 37



Ref: EY-000092651-01
Gosport Borough Council 11

Financial Statement Audit

Financial Statement Audit (continued)

Audit differences

We identified a small number of misstatements in disclosures which management corrected.

We have furthermore identified one material audit difference in the financial statements which has been 
corrected by management. This difference pertains to the valuation of pension fund assets which were 
misstated by £1.6m.

We have also identified differences in property valuations of £168k, resulting in the overstatement of land and 
buildings in PPE. These differences were not corrected by management as these are immaterial which 
resulted from differences in opinion between two qualified valuers and are judgemental in nature.

Our application of materiality

When establishing our overall audit strategy, we determined a magnitude of uncorrected misstatements that 
we judged would be material for the financial statements as a whole.

Item Thresholds applied

Planning 
materiality

We determined planning materiality to be £1.24m as 2% of gross revenue expenditure 
reported in the accounts. We consider gross revenue expenditure to be one of the 
principal considerations for stakeholders in assessing the financial performance of the 
Council.

Reporting 
threshold

We agreed with the Policy & Organisation Board that we would report to the Board all 
audit differences in excess of £62k.

Page 38



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Section 4

Value for Money

Page 39



Ref: EY-000092651-01
Gosport Borough Council 13

Value for Money (VFM)

Scope and risks

We have complied with the NAO’s 2020 Code and the NAO’s Auditor Guidance 
Note in respect of VFM. We presented our final VFM risk assessment to the 17 
March 2022 Policy & Organisation Board meeting which was based on a 
combination of our cumulative audit knowledge and experience, our review of 
Council and committee reports, meetings with the senior officers and evaluation 
of associated documentation through our regular engagement with management 
and the finance team. We reported that we have identified risks of significant 
weakness in the Council’s VFM arrangements in relation to the ‘Governance’ and 
‘Improving Economy, Efficiency & Effectiveness’ criteria, specifically the 
arrangements where the body commissions or procures services, how the body 
ensures that this is done in accordance with relevant legislation, professional 
standards and internal policies, and how the body assesses whether it is 
realising the expected benefits.

Reporting

We completed our VFM arrangements work on 17 March 2022 and identified a 
significant weakness in the Council’s VFM arrangements in relation to the 
‘Governance’ and ‘Improving Economy, Efficiency & Effectiveness’ criteria. We 
reported this matter by exception in the audit report on the financial statements. 
Further details were provided in the Audit Results Report. We include within the 
VFM commentary below the associated recommendations we have agreed with 
the Council.

VFM Commentary

In accordance with the NAO’s 2020 Code, we are required to report a 
commentary against three specified reporting criteria:

• Financial sustainability
How the Council plans and manages its resources to ensure it can continue to 
deliver its services;

• Governance
How the Council ensures that it makes informed decisions and properly 
manages its risks; and

• Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness:
How the Council uses information about its costs and performance to improve 
the way it manages and delivers its services.

We identified risks of 
significant weaknesses 
in the Council’s VFM 
arrangements for 
2020/21.

We had matters to report 
by exception in the audit 
report.

Our VFM commentary 
highlights relevant 
issues for the Council 
and the wider public.

Page 40



Ref: EY-000092651-01
Gosport Borough Council 14

VFM Commentary

Introduction and context

The 2020 Code confirms that the focus of our work should be on the 
arrangements that the audited body is expected to have in place, based on the 
relevant governance framework for the type of public sector body being audited, 
together with any other relevant guidance or requirements. Audited bodies are 
required to maintain a system of internal control that secures value for money 
from the funds available to them whilst supporting the achievement of their 
policies, aims and objectives. They are required to comment on the operation of 
their governance framework during the reporting period, including arrangements 
for securing value for money from their use of resources, in a governance 
statement.

We have previously reported the VFM work we have undertaken during the year 
including our risk assessment. The commentary below aims to provide a clear 
narrative that explains our judgements in relation to our findings and any 
associated local context.

For 2020/21, the significant impact that the Covid-19 pandemic has had on the 
Council has shaped decisions made, how services have been delivered and 
financial plans have necessarily had to be reconsidered and revised. 

We have reflected these national and local contexts in our VFM commentary.

Financial sustainability

How the body ensures that it identifies all the significant financial pressures that 
are relevant to its short and medium-term plans and builds these into them

The Council’s Corporate Plan outlines its short-term service delivery objectives 
and informs its strategic planning, including its short-term and medium-term 
financial plans, under the following five key priorities and functions:

• Raise aspirations

• Enhance the environment

• Develop the economy

• Empower our residents

• Deliver effective services

The main vehicle for the council to deliver its financial sustainability is through its 
budget process as part of its short-term planning process. The Council prepares 
its revenue and capital budget through forward projections that consider known 
cost pressures arising from in-year service changes or from manager inputs 
during revised budget setting. These projections relate to council tax and 
business rates and are subject to multiple scenarios using both internal and 
external information.

The Council has had the 
arrangements we would 
expect to see to enable 
it to plan and manage its 
resources to ensure that 
it can continue to deliver 
its services.

Page 41



Ref: EY-000092651-01
Gosport Borough Council 15

VFM Commentary

Financial sustainability (continued)

The Council set an annual balanced revenue budget for 2020/21 which 
considered the context of the Government’s Comprehensive Spending Review, 
the Chancellor’s Budget, and the local government settlement. There has been a 
decline in overall government income in recent years with increasing amounts of 
income being generated locally through Council Tax, Business Rates, fees and 
charges, and income from commercial property. The revenue budget also 
considered financial pressures arising from increased inflationary costs and loss 
of income due to Covid-19. These pressures were mitigated by the Council’s 
available working balance, other earmarked reserves and identified cost-
efficiencies. 

The Council also prepared a three-year revenue budget as part of its medium-
term financial strategy (MTFS) to deliver its service delivery objectives over the 
medium term. This plan is further updated annually as part of the budgeting 
process to give a clear view of forthcoming financial challenges facing the 
Council. The 2021/22 – 2023/24 plan approved by Council on 5 February 2020 
identified significant budget reductions of £1.7m over this period which 
highlighted the strategic challenges facing the Council due to the loss of income 
from the decision by Hampshire County Council to withdraw recycling income 
from collection authorities, and the potential outcome of the Fair Funding review 
and Business Rate "reset" then assumed to be implemented in 2021/22 which 
will likely result in reduced Government funding generally for District Councils as 
well as the removal of retained business rates growth (i.e. the annual uplift in 
business rate income retained since 2013/14).

Revenue and capital budgets are monitored throughout the financial year by the 
Service Unit Managers with the support of the Financial Services Unit. Service 
Unit Managers provide feedback during regular section meetings that feed into 
budget monitoring reports by the Borough Treasurer to the Council Management 
Team and Council Members. These reports aim to identify changes in trends and 
resource requirements that culminate into the revenue and capital outturn 
reported in the Council’s financial statements and reflect the efficiency of in-year 
monitoring. For 2020/21, the Council contained expenditure to within original 
budget levels despite facing continued financial pressures resulting in an 
underspend of £1,500k against a budget of £11,946k.

How the body plans to bridge its funding gaps and identifies achievable savings

The Council continues to face financial pressures that require it to identify 
significant savings or deliver income growth over the next 4 years to balance the 
budget and achieve set service delivery objectives.

For 2020/21 the revenue budget was prepared to accommodate savings of 
£0.5m identified in the MTFS of the prior year due to further funding reductions 
from Government and inflationary and other cost pressures.

The Council has had the 
arrangements we would 
expect to see to enable 
it to plan and manage its 
resources to ensure that 
it can continue to deliver 
its services.

Page 42



Ref: EY-000092651-01
Gosport Borough Council 16

VFM Commentary

Financial sustainability (continued)

For 2021/22 – 2023/24, the MTFS forecast a deficit of £1.7m over this period 
which is largely attributable to the financial impacts from the potential introduction 
of the Fair Funding Review and the Business Rate Reset, the loss of the 
Council’s waste recycling income, and inflationary costs which includes pension 
increases that are not fully offset by increases in funding.

The MTFP aims to match in-year spending with its in-year income and funding 
over the medium term using the Revenue Financing Reserve and the Stability 
and Resilience Reserve to "smooth out" necessary savings required to meet the 
forecast budget deficit over the next 3 years, thereby allowing for a managed 
reduction in spending and a measured approach to achieving savings. To this 
end, annual savings of £0.57m have been identified in the MTFS to meet the 
estimated savings requirement of £1.7m over this period. This savings strategy is 
however dependant on the Council’s ability to retain appropriate levels of 
reserves over the medium term. The flexibility afforded by these reserves will 
further ensure that if the 3-year forecast improves, the Council did not 
prematurely make service reductions to achieve saving requirements that could 
have reasonably been avoided. Conversely, if the forecast deteriorates, the 
Council will have made good progress towards achieving its savings requirement 
whilst having sufficient reserves to avoid significant future spikes in its savings 
requirements in any single year.

This forecast deficit of £1.7m represents circa 14% of the Council's General Fund 
budget. Against a backdrop of significant reductions in Government funding and 
associated savings over the past 8 years, this will prove challenging for the 
Council. However, the proposed even profile of £0.57m in annual savings over 
the medium term will provide opportunities for the MTFS to be achieved through 
measures that stimulate both the Business Rate Base and Council Tax Base, 
additional income opportunities, service reviews and further integrated working 
with partners.

How the body plans finances to support the sustainable delivery of services in 
accordance with strategic and statutory priorities

As discussed above, the Council has detailed its service delivery objectives in its 
Corporate Plan. This forms the basis for its strategic and statutory priorities which 
informs its short-term and medium-term financial plans.

Progress towards achieving these objectives is monitored by the Council 
Management Team throughout the year with remedial actions identified and 
actioned where necessary.

These short- and medium-term financial plans detail the likely costs associated 
with the Council’s strategic and statutory priorities; identifies any budget gaps 
that may arise from reduction in government funding; and planned savings 
strategies to bridge any gaps between available funding from taxation and the 
cost of services.

The Council has had the 
arrangements we would 
expect to see to enable 
it to plan and manage its 
resources to ensure that 
it can continue to deliver 
its services.

Page 43



Ref: EY-000092651-01
Gosport Borough Council 17

VFM Commentary

Financial sustainability (continued)

Any new service investment made must meet either objectives within the 
corporate plan or be a new statutory obligation.

How the body ensures that its financial plan is consistent with other plans such 
as workforce, capital, investment, and other operational planning which may 
include working with other local public bodies as part of a wider system

During its short-term and medium-term financial planning process, the Council 
develops an annual capital investment strategy as part of its revenue budget. 
This capital investment strategy follows on the Council’s Capital Programme for 
2019/20 to 2022/23 which was approved by the Council on 6 February 2019 and 
serves as a key mechanism for the Council to achieve its strategic objectives and 
enhance services for Borough residents with the strategic core aims of 
supporting a medium-term outlook, maximising the capital resources available 
and flexing their application, and targeting capital investment.

Officers review existing projects and the potential for new projects during the 
budget preparation process. This capital plan also determines the cost of 
financing required for these projects, along with any other financial impacts. 
These costs are within the annual revenue budget to reflect the latest information 
regarding the delivery of the capital programme.

For 2020/21 onwards, the capital programme comprises a balanced set of 
proposals which seek to ensure the medium-term resilience of essential core 
services; continued improvement to Council Housing and maintaining the 
affordability of good quality homes for residents (including investment in building 
new housing stock); to provide substantial investment into the economy of the 
Borough; and to continue investment in digital technology to support the 
customer experience with the Council.

How the body identifies and manages risks to financial resilience, e.g. unplanned 
changes in demand, including challenge of the assumptions underlying its plans.

The Council manages its financial resilience risk through the following 
implemented measures:

• The Council publishes detailed short-term and medium-term financial plans 
that are aligned to its Corporate Plan and includes actions to ensure financial 
sustainability as discussed above;

• In-year monitoring of these financial plans to identify and incorporate any 
unplanned changes in underlying assumptions of the Council’s plans as 
discussed above;

• Reporting of financial performance against above set financial plans to the 
Council as discussed above; and

The Council has had the 
arrangements we would 
expect to see to enable 
it to plan and manage its 
resources to ensure that 
it can continue to deliver 
its services.

Page 44



Ref: EY-000092651-01
Gosport Borough Council 18

VFM Commentary

Financial sustainability (continued)

• Risk management processes to identify, monitor and address risks.

The Council has established a Risk Management Policy during the year which 
serves as framework for the delivery of the Risk and Opportunity management 
function and to provide guidance on developing risk and opportunity 
management as a routine process for all services.

Risk and Management Opportunities identified are monitored continuously 
throughout the year by the Risk Management Group and regularly discussed at a 
Corporate Governance Group level consisting of the Chief Executive, Deputy 
Chief Executive, Head Internal Auditor and Monitoring Officer. A risk relating to 
continued pressures on the Council’s finances has been identified and included 
in the Council’s risk register as a very likely risk with a major impact for the 2020-
21 financial year. The Council continued to implement remedial actions that lead 
to the setting of a balanced budget in 2021-22 and an overall underspending of 
£1.5m in the 2020/21 financial year.

The Council has had the 
arrangements we would 
expect to see to enable 
it to plan and manage its 
resources to ensure that 
it can continue to deliver 
its services.

Page 45



Ref: EY-000092651-01
Gosport Borough Council 19

VFM Commentary

Governance

How the body monitors and assesses risk and how the body gains assurance 
over the effective operation of internal controls, including arrangements to 
prevent and detect fraud

The Council’s Constitution sets out how it operates, how decisions are made, 
and the procedures which are followed to ensure that decisions are efficient, 
transparent and accountable to local people.

The Council further has a risk management framework which guides the 
development of risk and opportunity management at a strategic and operational 
level to ensure that risks are appropriately managed and controlled. This aids the 
achievement of the Council’s strategic priorities, supports decision-making 
processes, protects its reputation and other assets, and ensures that it is 
compliant with relevant statutory and regulatory obligations. These risks are 
identified as a routine process of all services and are regularly reviewed and 
updated. All significant risks (defined as something that may result in failure in 
service delivery, significant financial loss, non-achievement of key objectives, 
damage to health, legal action, or reputational damage) must be logged on a 
Corporate Risk Register, profiled (as high/medium/low through an assigned risk 
score), and mitigating measures/assurances must be put in place. These risks 
are monitored in-year by the Risk Management Group and Corporate 
Governance Group. Updates to the corporate risk register are also presented to 
the Standards & Governance Committee in-year for discussion.

The Council also has an internal audit service in place which provides the 
Council with information regarding the effectiveness of the internal control 
environment and its arrangements to prevent and detect fraud. Regular in-year 
reporting by internal audit to the Standards & Governance Committee is also in 
place to ensure that efficient and effective assurance arrangements have been 
implemented to assist in the management of risk and performance.

How the body approaches and carries out its annual budget setting process

The annual budgeting process including relevant responsibilities and procedures 
have been set out in Part 4 of the Council’s Constitution.

As discussed above, the financial planning process of the Council seeks to 
reconcile corporate and business plans and strategies with the relevant 
resources, including the finance department. This process commences with a 
series of strategic initiatives with inputs from the various stakeholders. Similar to 
the establishment of the Council’s MTFS and Medium-Term Capital Strategy, the 
Council also has an implemented budgeting system that allows for the alignment 
of its annual budget to the priorities and commitments in its Corporate Plan.

The Council refreshes the MTFS and agrees the budget strategy for the 
forthcoming year, whereby managers are then tasked to review their budgets for 
its appropriateness and to confirm details for additional income or savings plans

The Council has had the 
arrangements we would 
expect to see to enable 
to make informed 
decisions and properly 
manage its risks, except 
for those arrangements 
on how the body 
monitors and ensures 
appropriate standards, 
such as meeting 
legislative/regulatory 
requirements and 
standards in terms of 
officer or member 
behaviour (such as gifts 
and hospitality or 
declarations/conflicts of 
interests), and for 
example where it 
procures or 
commissions services
.

Page 46



Ref: EY-000092651-01
Gosport Borough Council 20

VFM Commentary

Governance (continued)

through a detailed financial planning exercise. Subsequently, the overall savings 
plan is checked and consulted on prior to initial consideration by the Council in 
February each year, which also considers the options for Council Tax setting.

How the body ensures effective processes and systems are in place to ensure 
budgetary control; to communicate relevant, accurate and timely management 
information (including non-financial information where appropriate); supports its 
statutory financial reporting requirements; and ensures corrective action is taken 
where needed.

The processes and systems in place to ensure budgetary control have been set 
out in within Chapter 4 within the Council’s Constitution, and stipulate that:

• Service Unit Managers are responsible for ensuring that expenditure and 
income budgets assigned to their staff are monitored and controlled against 
the Council’s approved budget;

• the Financial Services Unit is responsible for providing other Service Unit 
Managers with financial information in order to enable them to monitor the 
performance of the operations and services under their control;

• Accountants are to attend Section meetings to provide input on the budget 
situation and resolve any budgetary queries;

• the Section 151 Officer shall submit regular budget monitoring reports to the 
Council Management Team and Council Members identifying changes in 
trends and resource requirements; and

• all Service Unit Managers should ensure that arrangements are in place for 
their staff to record time spent on appropriate projects and services.

Furthermore, each budget line has an assigned budget manager who is 
responsible for managing the budget. Monthly budget monitoring packs are 
produced and shared with managers to assess the current financial performance 
shortly after the month end. The accountants further meet with the budget 
managers to review these budgets and identify both areas of financial pressure 
and underspend. If required, the Council will also hold a series of contingency 
budgets which are available to meet pressures identified.

The Council Management Team also produces and evaluates monthly reports on 
the financial performance of the Council to identify emerging issues. This 
management process is also subject to regular internal audit review to ensure 
that the system is fit for purpose.

As discussed above, the efficiency of these control is evidenced by the overall 
outturn position of £1.5m underspent for the 2020-21 financial year

The Council has had the 
arrangements we would 
expect to see to enable 
to make informed 
decisions and properly 
manage its risks, except 
for those arrangements 
on how the body 
monitors and ensures 
appropriate standards, 
such as meeting 
legislative/regulatory 
requirements and 
standards in terms of 
officer or member 
behaviour (such as gifts 
and hospitality or 
declarations/conflicts of 
interests), and for 
example where it 
procures or 
commissions services
.

Page 47



Ref: EY-000092651-01
Gosport Borough Council 21

VFM Commentary

Governance (continued)

How the body ensures it makes properly informed decisions, supported by 
appropriate evidence and allowing for challenge and transparency.  This includes 
arrangements for effective challenge from those charged with governance/audit 
committee.

Primary oversight is the responsibility of the Council with some delegated to 
Policy & Organisation Board and Scrutiny & Governance Committee. These 
committees meet regularly throughout the year  during which key issues are 
raised and addressed with effective challenge from its members.

All decisions of the Council and these Committees are accompanied by a 
detailed report which details the rationale for the decision, the options 
considered, legal advice and financial advice. A set corporate template is also 
used to ensure that all of advice needed to reach a decision is provided. Under 
the constitution, all decisions may be called in by members for review prior to   
implementation on specific grounds. These reviews are the purview of the Policy 
& Organisation Board.

To allow for transparency, the Council also ensures that:

• Publishes relevant information relating to salaries, business interests and 
performance data on its website;

• Has a procurement team who provide advice and issue clear guidelines for 
procuring goods and services;

• Publishes information to the Council and its Panels as part of established 
accountability mechanisms;

• Prepares an Annual Governance Statement; and

• Prepares a Corporate Plan.

The Authority is furthermore committed to the publication of transparent 
performance information on its website, which includes: 

• Budget reports;

• a Medium-Term Financial Plan;

• a Corporate Plan;

• Statement of Accounts;

• Annual Governance Statement; and

• Information as required under the Local Government Transparency Code.

There is also evidence of good arrangements in place to monitor the 
implementation of internal audit recommendations by the Standards & 
Governance Committee. Internal audit progress reports are presented regularly 
throughout the year to monitor the implementation of internal audit’s 
recommendations and corrective actions where necessary.

The Council has had the 
arrangements we would 
expect to see to enable 
to make informed 
decisions and properly 
manage its risks, except 
for those arrangements 
on how the body 
monitors and ensures 
appropriate standards, 
such as meeting 
legislative/regulatory 
requirements and 
standards in terms of 
officer or member 
behaviour (such as gifts 
and hospitality or 
declarations/conflicts of 
interests), and for 
example where it 
procures or 
commissions services
.

Page 48



Ref: EY-000092651-01
Gosport Borough Council 22

VFM Commentary

Governance (continued)

How the body monitors and ensures appropriate standards, such as meeting 
legislative/regulatory requirements and standards in terms of officer or member 
behaviour (such as gifts and hospitality or declarations/conflicts of interests).

The roles and responsibilities of both members and officers of the Council are 
outlined in the Code of Conduct in Part 5 of its Constitution.

Serious breaches of this protocol by officers should be dealt with under the 
Council’s disciplinary procedures.  Breaches by councillors may be referred to 
the relevant Group Leader or Whip for relevant party group consideration, should 
be reported to the Chief Executive and the Monitoring Officer, and will be 
reported to the Standards and Governance Committee.

The Council is transparent about how decisions are taken and recorded by:

• ensuring that decisions are made in public and recorded. Those decisions and 
relevant information are publicly available (except where that information is 
exempt under the provisions of the Local Government Act or determined as 
being confidential by Government) and

• having rules and procedures which govern how decisions are made. 

The Council has implemented systems to ensure conflicts of interest are 
identified, recorded, and acted upon accordingly, excluding anyone from 
decision-making where a conflict arises, and making public declaration of 
interests through its Register of Interests which can be requested on the 
Council’s website and covers employees, governing body members, and 
members of panels/committees and sub-committee.

Regular training is also provided to members on standards issues to ensure 
awareness of relevant requirements. Each member and officer are furthermore 
expected to complete a return on any gifts of hospitality.

The Council also has a published Whistleblowing Policy and provides protection 
to individuals raising concerns.  This policy is reviewed annually in line with 
guidance. 

The Council furthermore ensures that effective, transparent, and accessible 
arrangements are in place for dealing with complaints.  The website contains 
guidance for submitting complaints against the Council by the public and 
processes are in place to progress any complaints that are made.

However, Internal Audit’s Procurement Report for 2020/21 concluded a ‘No 
Assurance’ rating over the Council’s overall procurement process based on the 
audit of the following two control areas:

• Compliance with Policies, Laws and Regulations - No Assurance

• Effectiveness and Efficiency of Operations - Limited Assurance

The Council has had the 
arrangements we would 
expect to see to enable 
to make informed 
decisions and properly 
manage its risks, except 
for those arrangements 
on how the body 
monitors and ensures 
appropriate standards, 
such as meeting 
legislative/regulatory 
requirements and 
standards in terms of 
officer or member 
behaviour (such as gifts 
and hospitality or 
declarations/conflicts of 
interests), and for 
example where it 
procures or 
commissions services
.

Page 49



Ref: EY-000092651-01
Gosport Borough Council 23

VFM Commentary

Governance (continued)

Internal Audit assessed compliance across three predominant controls:

• All procurement spend which occurred in three financial years (2018/19, 
2019/20 and the period April 2020 to December 2020) has been in 
accordance with procurement regulations; 

• All procurement spend for the financial year 2020/21 has been undertaken 
using the Council’s electronic procurement solution to ensure all bids 
(quotations and tenders) and supporting information are stored for 
management and transparency purposes; and

• Where applicable, all contract spend has been recorded on the Council’s 
contract register to enable the Council to comply with the Public Contracts 
Regulations 2015.

All three tests resulted in significant findings, driving the ‘No Assurance’ rating 
assigned to compliance. 

It is therefore our judgement that the report provides clear evidence of a lack of 
appropriate arrangements to ensure compliance with internal procedures during 
the year under audit. The audit work was completed during the year, and the 
report finalised in July 2021.

Action plans have been developed since the publication of this report.  However, 
the extent of progress has not been as we would have expected for an issue of 
this significance. Whilst it appears progress is being made to address 
compliance and contract management within its procurement process, the 
supporting evidence is still somewhat limited.

The Council’s draft Procurement Strategy makes specific and consistent 
reference to the use of Contract Procedure Rules (CPRs) with an emphasis to 
“ensure compliance with all public sector legislative requirements and the 
Council’s own CPRs”. Therefore, the draft Strategy does suggest an improved 
focus to be made ]on compliance with the Constitution and the CPRs. The CPRs 
are currently under review at the Council, expected to be approved in March 
2022.  

In regard to contract management, the Council’s actions to improve the 
completeness and transparency of its contract register appear to be in their initial 
stages. The contracts register is published on the Proactis system as required, 
and is controlled by the Procurement team. As procurements are completed, the 
Council acquires the signed contract from the officer responsible and the details 
are uploaded to Proactis. Officers provided copies of the emails sent to staff, by 
the Chief Executive, including lists of projects per department which had not 
been input onto the Proactis system, with instructions to officers on next steps to 
ensure inclusion on the register. 

In order to address the findings of Internal Audit, the Council compiled an Action 
Plan to document the progression of proposals . The Action plan includes the 
lead officer responsible for each action, alongside a completion date and has

The Council has had the 
arrangements we would 
expect to see to enable 
to make informed 
decisions and properly 
manage its risks, except 
for those arrangements 
on how the body 
monitors and ensures 
appropriate standards, 
such as meeting 
legislative/regulatory 
requirements and 
standards in terms of 
officer or member 
behaviour (such as gifts 
and hospitality or 
declarations/conflicts of 
interests), and for 
example where it 
procures or 
commissions services
.

Page 50



Ref: EY-000092651-01
Gosport Borough Council 24

VFM Commentary

Governance (continued)

been graded to show progress: not yet started, in progress, complete

Overall, from our review of the thirteen action points were noted, however it is 
clear that the actions which will have the most impact on compliance have not 
yet been addressed.  In summary, as at the completion of our work in January 
2022:

• Two were rated ‘Complete’ 

• Seven were ‘In Progress’

• Four had ‘Not Yet Started’

A number have been subject to delays between action plan updates.

In our view prioritisation should centre on the further recommended 
investigations, staff training and the publication of Contract Procedure Rules and 
Procurement Strategy, in order to see significant improvement in the Council’s 
procurement process.

Whilst there are still measures being taken to ensure completeness of contract 
registers and publication of strategies, these remain in progress and in draft. The 
Council’s training tracker indicates that of the 42 officers listed, only six are 
categorised as confident in loading projects.  Training has been delayed until the 
CPRs and Procurement Strategy are finalised. It is understandable that training 
cannot progress until guidelines and procedures are finalised, but this represents 
a continuing risk of inconsistent practices. The dependency of other actions from 
the Procurement Strategy and the Contract Procedure Regulations is a critical 
path where we would have anticipated earlier prioritisation and completion.

We have attempted to follow-up other aspects of the action plan, including from 
the Chief Executive’s emails relating to the population of the contract register and 
instruction on the next steps to ensure their inclusion.   We have not received 
evidence that the contracts has been uploaded, and there is a lack of identifiable 
referencing to enable a comprehensive check through to the system. This limited 
our ability to sample transactions and assess both compliance and value for 
money. 

Therefore, we have concluded that the risk of not adhering to the procurement 
process is still prevalent, given the Council’s delay in completing actions against 
the Internal Audit findings. As such, the Council is still at risk of challenge by 
external suppliers, residents and the public

Once the revised arrangements have been put in place, the Council needs to 
ensure that all procurement follows the rules.  Procurement rules are not a 
bureaucratic inconvenience to be circumvented in the drive to ‘get something 
done’.  They are designed to protect all parties involved and provide an 
evidenced based process to mitigate any potential or perceived conflicts. This 
needs to be understood throughout the organisation, by both officers and 
councillors, and include adherence to proper separation of duties within those

The Council has had the 
arrangements we would 
expect to see to enable 
to make informed 
decisions and properly 
manage its risks, except 
for those arrangements 
on how the body 
monitors and ensures 
appropriate standards, 
such as meeting 
legislative/regulatory 
requirements and 
standards in terms of 
officer or member 
behaviour (such as gifts 
and hospitality or 
declarations/conflicts of 
interests), and for 
example where it 
procures or 
commissions services
.

Page 51



Ref: EY-000092651-01
Gosport Borough Council 25

VFM Commentary

Governance (continued)

arrangements which is critical to ensuring the appropriate processes. The 
Council would then have the evidence available be able to demonstrate value for 
money, which is it currently unable to consistently do, and reduce any risk of 
legal challenge. 

The issue is evidence of weaknesses in proper arrangements for where the 
Council procures services, it can demonstrate how it ensures that this is done in 
accordance with relevant legislation, standards and internal policies, and how the 
council assesses whether it is realising the expected benefits. 

These findings provide evidence of a significant weakness in arrangements 
during 2020/21.

The Council has had the 
arrangements we would 
expect to see to enable 
to make informed 
decisions and properly 
manage its risks, except 
for those arrangements 
on how the body 
monitors and ensures 
appropriate standards, 
such as meeting 
legislative/regulatory 
requirements and 
standards in terms of 
officer or member 
behaviour (such as gifts 
and hospitality or 
declarations/conflicts of 
interests), and for 
example where it 
procures or 
commissions services
.

Page 52



Ref: EY-000092651-01
Gosport Borough Council 26

VFM Commentary

Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness

How financial and performance information has been used to assess 
performance to identify areas for improvement.

The Council Leadership Team takes overall accountability at an officer level for 
organisational performance management through in-year monitoring and review 
of the targets, outputs and outcomes during regular performance meetings. 
Performances against strategic objectives and targets are further reviewed by the 
Section 151 Officer with areas of improvement implemented by directorate teams 
that oversee the delivery of council activities under each of its strategic 
objectives.

Each head of service operates within these arrangements and is responsible for 
assisting in both identifying and addressing areas of improvement within their 
service areas. Where services are linked and have shared strategic outcomes, 
officers deliver performance improvements through multidisciplinary 
arrangements. These performance arrangements are integrated with financial 
management and budget forward planning arrangements. 

Furthermore, any issues identified by internal audit are monitored via the internal 
audit and reported to the Governance and Standards Committee on a regular 
basis. Officers not taking sufficient action on these service improvements may be 
requested to report to the Committee.

How the body evaluates the services it provides to assess performance and 
identify areas for improvement

The Council’s service delivery objectives are detailed in its Corporate Plan. 
Subsequent short- and medium-term financial plans are also aligned to this 
corporate plan to ensure that achievement towards the Council’s strategic 
objectives are adequately funded.

The Council Management Team regularly monitors and reviews in-year progress 
towards achieving these strategic objectives. The Leader of the Council holds 
frequent meetings with the Chief Executive Officer, Assistant Chief Executive 
and Monitoring Officer to review this progress in achieving the Council’s strategic 
priorities for action, performance management and forward planning for major 
issues and projects. 

The Council Management Team also meets periodically to develop policy and 
strategic issues that commensurate with the Council’s strategic priorities. 
Members of Council Management Team meet collectively and individually with 
the Leader of the Council and other leading members of the Council’s 
administration to consider new policies and strategies as well as managing, 
monitoring, and reviewing existing policy and strategy.

As discussed above, in-year reporting by Internal Audit to the Governance and 
Standards Committee also ensures that findings raised by both Internal Audit are 
monitored.

The Council has had the 
arrangements we would 
expect to see to enable 
it to use information 
about its costs and 
performance to improve 
the way it manages and 
delivers services, except 
for those arrangements 
on How the body 
ensures that 
commissioning and 
procuring services is 
done in accordance with 
relevant legislation, 
professional standards 
and internal policies, 
and how the body 
assesses whether it is 
realising the expected 
benefits.

Page 53



Ref: EY-000092651-01
Gosport Borough Council 27

VFM Commentary

Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness (continued)

How the body ensures it delivers its role within significant partnerships, engages 
with stakeholders it has identified, monitors performance against expectations, 
and ensures action is taken where necessary to improve

Partnerships:

Partnerships allow the Council to work with organisations, other local authorities 
and groups to aid in the delivery of the Councils services and objectives. The 
Council has strong links with Hampshire County Council in relation to education 
within the city and highways management and a formal partnership agreement 
with Fareham Borough Council in relation to Environmental Health, Licensing 
and Building Control Engagement.

The Council also has also entered an arrangement with Portsmouth City Council 
in relation to the sharing of senior management and services such as HR, 
Communications, and Internal Audit. This primarily addresses future financial 
challenges faced by the Council. These arrangements have brought about costs 
savings and improved operational resilience with the ability to call on resources 
and expertise from Portsmouth City Council which otherwise were not readily 
available. The roles and responsibilities of these shared posts will continue to 
include those relating to the Governance of this Council in accordance with the 
policies and procedures of this Council.

Gosport also works with local organisations such as Citizens Advice and Gosport 
Voluntary Action to ensure further engagement with the local area. 

Consultations:

The Council frequently consults residents both where there is a legal duty to 
consult and on matters of particular interest including, but not limited to planned 
developments within the Borough.

The Authority responds to the views of stakeholders and the community in the 
following ways:

• Publishing a Corporate Plan that sets out the Council’s purpose and 
commitments to the community and the outcomes the Council intends to 
achieve;

• An established business planning process, including the development of a 
published MTFS;

• Making decisions at public meetings of its boards and committees;

• Enabling members of the public to address the Council’s boards and 
committees using the Council’s process for public questions and deputations 
available in the Council’s Constitution and on the Council’s website; and

The Council has had the 
arrangements we would 
expect to see to enable 
it to use information 
about its costs and 
performance to improve 
the way it manages and 
delivers services, except 
for those arrangements 
on How the body 
ensures that 
commissioning and 
procuring services is 
done in accordance with 
relevant legislation, 
professional standards 
and internal policies, 
and how the body 
assesses whether it is 
realising the expected 
benefits.

Page 54



Ref: EY-000092651-01
Gosport Borough Council 28

VFM Commentary

Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness (continued)

• The Council complies with the Freedom of Information Act (2000) and 
requests can be submitted electronically or in person to be considered by the 
service unit concerned within 20 working days.

Complaints:

The Council has a clear and publicised 3 stage complaints procedure in place to 
allow the public an opportunity to raise an issue where they feel the Council has 
not performed the service(s) it should have. Should a complaint not be resolved 
within this process, the option to raise the issue with the Local Government 
Ombudsman is also advertised. The Council also reports statistical information 
on complaints relating to the Ombudsman.

How the body ensures that commissioning and procuring services is done in 
accordance with relevant legislation, professional standards and internal policies, 
and how the body assesses whether it is realising the expected benefits.

The published Contract Standing Orders in Part 4 of the Council’s Constitution 
detail how the Council is required to procure services. The Council also has a 
team of qualified procurement officers to ensure compliance with these 
requirements.

The Council placed significant focus on improving procurement processes within 
the organisation during 2019/20 which included the implementation of a new 
procurement electronic system, Proactis. Internal Audit was consulted on the 
system controls and process prior to implementation and provided assurance 
that, if used correctly, the procurement system would provide suitable controls to 
manage the associated risks. The use of the system is a change in process for 
the Authority and requires a significant culture change. As we reported in the 
‘Governance’ section, Internal Audit assessed compliance over three 
predominant controls and identified significant findings which drove a ‘No 
Assurance’ rating. An action plan was subsequently developed to address these 
findings but a number of actions therein were delayed.

These findings provide evidence of a significant weakness in arrangements 
during 2020/21 and the Council’s procurement process at risk of being 
challenged by external suppliers, residents and the public.

The Council has had the 
arrangements we would 
expect to see to enable 
it to use information 
about its costs and 
performance to improve 
the way it manages and 
delivers services, except 
for those arrangements 
on How the body 
ensures that 
commissioning and 
procuring services is 
done in accordance with 
relevant legislation, 
professional standards 
and internal policies, 
and how the body 
assesses whether it is 
realising the expected 
benefits.

Page 55



Ref: EY-000092651-01
Gosport Borough Council 29

VFM Commentary

Recommendations

As a result of the VFM procedures we have carried out we have agreed the 
following recommendations with the Council:

Recommendation 1

Council needs to continue to implement the remaining items from the Action Plan 
in response to Internal Audit’s procurement review, responding to the 
weaknesses identified.

Recommendation 2

Both Members and senior management should take a lead role promoting the 
updated procurement strategy and contract procedure rules, so that their 
application reinforces a change towards a compliance culture regarding 
procurement.

Forward look

Looking forward to 2021 and beyond, the Council needs to address identified 
weaknesses in its VFM arrangements. The Council also continues to face 
increased financial pressures due to increased inflationary costs.

The Council faces 
further challenge and 
change beyond 2021 
which will form part of 
our 2021/22 VFM 
arrangements work.

The Council has agreed 
two recommendations 
which we will follow up 
as part of our 2021/22 
VFM arrangements 
work.

Page 56



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Section 5

Other Reporting 
Issues

Page 57



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Governance Statement

We are required to consider the completeness of disclosures in the Council’s governance statement, identify 
any inconsistencies with the other information of which we are aware from our work, and consider whether it 
complies with relevant guidance. 

We completed this work and did not identify any areas of concern.

Whole of Government Accounts

We have not yet performed the procedures required by the National Audit Office (NAO) on the Whole of 
Government Accounts consolidation pack submission. The guidance for 20/21 is yet to be issued. We will 
liaise with the Council to complete this work as required. 

Report in the Public Interest 

We have a duty under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to consider whether, in the public interest, 
to report on any matter that comes to our attention in the course of the audit in order for it to be considered 
by the Council or brought to the attention of the public.

We did not identify any issues which required us to issue a report in the public interest.

Other powers and duties

We identified no issues during our audit that required us to use our additional powers under the Local Audit 
and Accountability Act 2014.

Control Themes and Observations

As part of our work, we obtained an understanding of internal control sufficient to plan our audit and 
determine the nature, timing and extent of testing performed. Although our audit was not designed to 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control, we are required to communicate to you significant 
deficiencies in internal control identified during our audit.

We have adopted a fully substantive approach and have therefore not tested the operation of controls.

Our audit did not identify any controls issues to bring to the attention of the Policy & Organisation Board.

Other Reporting Issues

Gosport Borough Council 31

Page 58



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Appendix A

Audit Fees

Page 59



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Our final proposed fees for 2020/21 are set out in the table below:.

Audit Fees

Gosport Borough Council 33

Description
Final Fee 2020/21

£

Planned Fee 2020/21 

£

Final Fee 2019/20

£

Scale fee – Code work 40,844 40,844 40,844

Proposed scale fee rebasing
(Note 1)

18,114 -
16,251

Scale fee variation (Note 2) 13,486

Scale fee variation (Note 3) 13,544 6,000 -

Total fees 85,988* 49,344 57,095

Note 1 – This relates to our scale fee rebasing for the audit, to take into account changes in professional and 
regulatory requirements to that date. These have been raised in prior year audits and as these are ongoing 
requirements, we have included the resource impact again in our 2020/21 requested fees. This is the same 
request that has was submitted in the prior year and has been adjusted for the changes in rates. 

Note 2 – This figure includes a variation to the scale fee for items specific to the 2020/21 audit year where 
additional audit work was undertaken by the audit team. We will submitting a request for this additional work 
undertaken on:

• Accounting for Covid-19 grants;

• Work of EY expert to calculate an auditors estimate of the pension liability;

• VFM additional risks identified;

For 2019/20, PSAA determined the total of the above two categories at £16,251 and has accordingly been 
shown as a single comparative figure.

Note 3 – The fee impacts of the NAO’s 2020 Code of Audit Practice, and the revised ISA540 on estimates 
were new during 2020/21. The PSAA communicated fee ranges for each type of auditee, and our assessed 
impact for Gosport Borough Council is that ISA540 is at the bottom of the ranges, whilst the VFM 
Commentary requirements are at the top of the range due to the significant risks and findings reported earlier 
in this report.

We will discuss the additional fee proposal with management and submit to the PSAA, providing an update 
to the Policy & Organisation Board when the final fee is determined.

* this is our proposed figure that is to be submitted to the PSAA

Page 60



Ref: EY-000092651-01

EY | Assurance | Tax | Transactions | Advisory

Ernst & Young LLP

© Ernst & Young LLP. Published in the UK.
All Rights Reserved.

The UK firm Ernst & Young LLP is a limited liability partnership 
registered in England and Wales
with registered number OC300001 and is a member firm of Ernst & 
Young Global Limited.

Ernst & Young LLP, 1 More London Place, London, SE1 2AF.

ey.com

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



Version 1 S.Lucking 20/8/21 

GBC Procurement -Action Plan. 

Key:  

 Not yet started 

 In progress 

 Complete 

 

 Action Lead Officer Cost/Impact Start Date Completion 
Date 

Comments 

1.  Procurement Strategy to be prepared to confirm 
Gosport’s vision for the future, purpose and 
values of the Authority, aims and objectives of 
the Procurement function. 

Head of Procurement Cost neutral August 2021 02/02/2022 P&O Board 
27/1/2022, full 
Council 
02/02/2022-
complete. 

2.  Revision of Gateway process/forms to include 
additional guidance to Officers on the 
appropriate process required for the financial 
level of the procurement. Will incorporate all 
requirements /guidance in relation to updated 
CPR’s. Will also include inclusion of Equality 
Impact questions as per procurement Strategy 
IIEA to ensure compliance with PSED. Will 
include evaluation of gateway process. 

Head of 
Procurement/Procurem
ent Officer 

Cost neutral September 
2021 

31/7/2022 Will be revised 
if necessary 
with reviewed 
CPRs. 

3.  Develop a Social Value statement incorporating 
sustainability, environmental issues and 
opportunities for local economic regeneration, 
to be included in scorings for relevant 
procurements. Provide evaluation templates to 
reflect said scorings. Provide training and advice 
to Officers as relevant including the “lotting” of 

Head of 
Procurement/Corporate 
policy unit. 

Cost neutral Jan 2022 31/12/2022 Delayed due to 
Head of 
Procurement 
undertaking 
additional 
projects 
including 

P
age 63



Version 1 S.Lucking 20/8/21 

tenders to encourage bids from SME’s and other 
local businesses. 

Household 
Support Fund 
and Energy 
grants. 

4.  Engage with local businesses to understand 
available market and encourage registering for 
Council opportunities- Initial electronic comms 
message followed by possible business events to 
include awareness and training sessions for the 
use of Proactis if required. 

Head of 
Procurement/Economic 
Development 

Small cost-
under £1000 

March 2022 31/12/2022 Delayed due to 
Head of 
Procurement 
undertaking 
additional 
projects 
including 
Household 
Support Fund 
and Energy 
grants. 

5.  Re-write of Contract Procedure Rules Borough Solicitor/ Head 
of Procurement 

CIPFA costs March 2021 P&O Board 
November 
22  

PG to add 
comment 

6.  Borough Solicitor and Head of Procurement to 
carry out mandatory workshops with all Section 
Heads, Budget Holders and staff members 
involved in any buying capacity during 
September and October 2021. It is recognised 
that the CPRs will be formally revised and we will 
use the opportunity to emphasise key 
Procurement messages through the same 
workshops with all procuring staff  
 

Head of Procurement. Cost neutral July/August 
22 

30/7/22 One further 
session planned 
for absent 
officers. 

7.  Report to CMT to investigate key findings and 
Head of Procurement and Head of Finance to 
prepare action plan to deal with non-compliant 
spend and liaise with Section Heads regarding 
required actions. The Council recognises that it 

Head of 
Procurement/Head of 
Finance 

Cost neutral August 2021 31/3/2022 Systems 
upgrade done 
with 
improvements 
to prevent 

P
age 64



Version 1 S.Lucking 20/8/21 

needs to monitor and report on this to result in 
greater governance.  

 

Invoices without 
proactis action- 
by use of a ref 
to be entered 
on PO and 
Invoice-final 
testing being 
done before full 
roll out. Report 
to CMT will 
follow final roll 
out. 

8.  Investigations to be undertaken on linking both 
the Purchase Order system and Proactis to allow 
for ongoing reporting of PO's without a contract 
attached.  
 

Head of 
Procurement/Head of 
Finance 

Cost neutral August 21 31/3/2022 As per 7 above. 
Compliance 
work been 
undertaken 
meanwhile to 
highlight non 
compliance. 
Audit also now 
commenced. 

9.  Procurement Pipeline to be reported at 
fortnightly CMT to highlight any delays in the 
process and relevant actions taken. 

Head of 
Procurement/All 
Section Heads 

Cost neutral August 2021 August 
2021 

Implemented 
and on-going 

10.  
 

Tender for low value repairs work to form 
Framework for potential call off/direct award to 
local suppliers. 

Head of Procurement/ 
Borough Solicitor. 

Cost neutral 1/5/2022 31/3/22 Delayed due to 
Head of 
Procurement 
undertaking 
additional 
projects 
including 
Household 
Support Fund  

P
age 65



Version 1 S.Lucking 20/8/21 

and Energy 
grants. 

11.  Tender for low value offices supplies/uniform to 
provide catalogues. 

Head of Procurement/ 
Procurement Officer 

Cost neutral Dec 2021 31/3/2022 Office supplies 
complete, 
Sanitary 
supplies 
underway 

12.  Email to be sent to all Section Heads from Chief 
Executive regarding the population of the 
contract register. Replies will be required from 
all Section Heads to confirm that all contracts 
have been added to the register and contract 
paperwork provided. 
 

Head of Procurement/ 
All Section Heads 

Cost neutral August 21 January 
2022 

E-mail sent and 
further 
reminder, HOP 
to report back 
to CMT in 
January 2022 

13.  Additional resource for procurement support to 
be recruited, initially on a temporary contact 

Head of procurement Within 
Budget 

August 21  In place. 

       

 

P
age 66



1 
 

Board/Committee: Standards and  Audit Sub Board 

Date of Meeting: 15 September 2022. 

Title: Gifts and Hospitality return for Council staff 

Author: Borough Solicitor and Monitoring Officer 

Status: For Noting  

  
PURPOSE 
  
To advise the Sub-Board of the Gifts and Hospitality declared by Council 
Staff for the period April 2021- March 2022.  
  
RECOMMENDATION 
  
That the Sub-Board notes the report.  
  
1 Background 
  
1.1  The Gifts and Hospitality Policy for staff was approved by the Policy 

and Organisation Board on 28 June 2017. 
  
1.2 This report notifies the Sub-Board of the gifts and hospitality declared 

by Council Staff from the period April 2021- March 2022.   
  
1.3  Staff gifts and hospitality are required to be reported to the Standards 

and Audit Sub Board annually.  
  
1.4 The Gifts and Hospitality Policy requires members of staff to notify 

the Monitoring Officer of all gifts which they have received. Gifts 
should only be accepted in line with the Gifts and Hospitality Policy 
where the value is £25 or under (£5 for Sheltered Scheme staff). This 
is completed in the form of a quarterly return.  

  
1.5 Gifts over £25 should be refused, unless refusal would cause offence 

and should be included within the quarterly return whether accepted 
or not.   

  
1.6 Hospitality cannot be accepted if it is offered in a personal capacity. It 

may be accepted if it is under £40 in value and is offered for receipt 
on behalf of the Council. It should have prior approval of section 
heads.  

  
2 Report 
  
2.1 
 
 
 
2.2 
 
 

A total of 28 declarations of gifts were made by members of staff in 
relation to gifts and hospitality received at a value of £25 or under 
within the period covered in the report. 
 
There were no cash gifts. Two gifts worth £20 and £15 were donated 
to the Mayor’s charity. Other gifts were shared amongst colleagues or 
put on display or kept by the staff member if appropriate. 

Page 67

Agenda Item 8



2 
 

2.3 
 
2.4 
 
 

No gifts were refused.  
 
A total of 2 declarations were made by members of staff in relation to 
hospitality offered. Both were lunches and were accepted, and valued 
at under £15 each.  
 

2.5 
 
 
 
2.6 
 
 
2.7 
 
 
 
2.8 
 
 

The notifications are varied relating to liaison with suppliers, 
stakeholders, tokens of thanks and professional networks and the 
Monitoring Officer continues to review declarations registered.  
 
All declarations recorded in the report have been approved by the 
relevant Section Head. 
 
The current Gifts and Hospitality Policy was approved in February 
2017 and there is nothing highlighted in this return that causes 
concern, however the policy will be kept under review.  
 
Neighbouring Councils’ policies vary in gifts and hospitality limits from 
£10-£25. 

3 Risk Assessment 
  
3.1 The Gifts and Hospitality Policy and reporting return to the Standards 

and Audit Sub-Board is required to ensure that staff conduct meets 
public expectation is in relation to the receipt of gifts and hospitality. 

  
4 Conclusion 
  
4.1 This report covers the period of April 2021 and March 2022 and future 

reports will be made at the first possible meeting of the Sub-Board in 
the Municipal Year. 

  

Financial Services 
comments: 

N/A 

Legal Services 
comments: 

Contained within the report  

Climate Change: N/A 

Crime and Disorder:  N/A 

Equality and 
Diversity: 

None 

Service Improvement 
Plan implications: 

N/A 
 

Corporate Plan: Deliver Effective Services 

Risk Assessment: Section 3 

Background papers: Gifts and Hospitalities Policy 

Appendices  

Report author/ Lead 
Officer: 

Lisa Young- Senior Democratic Services Officer  

 

Page 68



8/1 
 

  

Board/Committee: Standards and Audit Sub Board 

Date of meeting: 15 September 2022 

Title: Local Government Ombudsman Review 
2021/22 

Author: Chief Executive  

Status:   For Noting 

  
Purpose 
 
To advise the Sub Board of the Annual Review Letter 2022 received from the 
Local Government Ombudsman. 
 
Recommendation 
 
That the Sub- Board note the report. 
  
1.0 Background 
  
1.1 The Local Government Ombudsman writes to all local authorities on an 

annual basis summarising the complaints about the authority which 
have been dealt with by the Ombudsman during the previous year 
ending 31 March. 

  
1.2 The Ombudsman’s Annual Review Letter for the year ended 31 March 

2022 is attached to this report as Appendix 1.  
  
2.0 Report 
  
2.1 The Ombudsman’s Team received six complaints and enquiries during 

2021/22, three more than 2020/21 (figures for 2020/21 are shown in 
brackets). Of these, two were concerned with Corporate and other 
services (none), one with Housing Services (one), two with 
Environmental Services and Public Protection Legislation (none) and 
one with Planning and Development (one). 

  
2.2 
 
  
 
 

During this period, two of the complaints received by the Ombudsman 
were closed after initial enquiries (one), one was closed as was invalid 
or incomplete (none) and two were referred back for local resolution 
(one). One does not have a resolution outcome detailed. 

2.3 The Ombudsman suspended investigations to complaints through the 
period of 30 March 2020 and June 2020 as a result of the pandemic, 
which impacted on complaint numbers for 2020/2021 

 
3.0 

 
Risk assessment 

  
3.1 It is important that the Council has an effective and robust Customer 

Complaints Procedure in place in order to minimise the instances of 
compensation being paid. 

  
4.0 Conclusion 

Page 69

Agenda Item 9



8/2 
 

  
4.1 It is intended that this review be published on the Council’s website. 
  

 

Financial Services 
Comments : 

None 

Legal Services Comments : None 

Climate Change 
Implications  

None 

Crime and Disorder  None 

Service Improvement Plan 
implications: 

None 

Corporate Plan: None 

Risk Assessment: See above 

Background papers: Local Government Ombudsman Complaint 
Statistics 

Appendix A: Local Government Ombudsman’s Annual 
Review 2021/22 

Report Author/Lead Officer: David Williams 

 
 

Page 70



 

 

 

 

20 July 2022 
 
By email 
 
Mr Williams 
Chief Executive 
Gosport Borough Council 
 
 
Dear Mr Williams 
 
Annual Review letter 2022 
 
I write to you with your annual summary of complaint statistics from the Local Government and 

Social Care Ombudsman for the year ending 31 March 2022. The information offers valuable 

insight about your organisation’s approach to complaints. As such, I have sought to share this 

letter with the Leader of your Council and Chair of the appropriate Scrutiny Committee, to 

encourage effective ownership and oversight of complaint outcomes, which offer such valuable 

opportunities to learn and improve.  

Complaint statistics 

Our statistics focus on three key areas that help to assess your organisation’s commitment to 

putting things right when they go wrong: 

Complaints upheld - We uphold complaints when we find fault in an organisation’s actions, 

including where the organisation accepted fault before we investigated. We include the total 

number of investigations completed to provide important context for the statistic. 

Compliance with recommendations - We recommend ways for organisations to put things right 

when faults have caused injustice and monitor their compliance with our recommendations. 

Failure to comply is rare and a compliance rate below 100% is a cause for concern.  

Satisfactory remedy provided by the authority - In these cases, the organisation upheld the 

complaint and we agreed with how it offered to put things right. We encourage the early resolution 

of complaints and credit organisations that accept fault and find appropriate ways to put things 

right.  

Finally, we compare the three key annual statistics for your organisation with similar authorities to 

provide an average marker of performance. We do this for County Councils, District Councils, 

Metropolitan Boroughs, Unitary Councils, and London Boroughs. 

Page 71



Your annual data, and a copy of this letter, will be uploaded to our interactive map,                   

Your council’s performance, on 27 July 2022. This useful tool places all our data and information 

about councils in one place. You can find the detail of the decisions we have made about your 

Council, read the public reports we have issued, and view the service improvements your Council 

has agreed to make as a result of our investigations, as well as previous annual review letters.  

Supporting complaint and service improvement 

I know your organisation, like ours, will have been through a period of adaptation as the 

restrictions imposed by the pandemic lifted. While some pre-pandemic practices returned, many 

new ways of working are here to stay. It is my continued view that complaint functions have been 

under-resourced in recent years, a trend only exacerbated by the challenges of the pandemic. 

Through the lens of this recent upheaval and adjustment, I urge you to consider how your 

organisation prioritises complaints, particularly in terms of capacity and visibility. Properly 

resourced complaint functions that are well-connected and valued by service areas, management 

teams and elected members are capable of providing valuable insight about an organisation’s 

performance, detecting early warning signs of problems and offering opportunities to improve 

service delivery. 

I want to support your organisation to harness the value of complaints and we continue to develop 

our programme of support. Significantly, we are working in partnership with the Housing 

Ombudsman Service to develop a joint complaint handling code. We are aiming to consolidate our 

approaches and therefore simplify guidance to enable organisations to provide an effective, quality 

response to each and every complaint. We will keep you informed as this work develops, and 

expect that, once launched, we will assess your compliance with the code during our 

investigations and report your performance via this letter. 

An already established tool we have for supporting improvements in local complaint handling is 

our successful training programme. We adapted our courses during the Covid-19 pandemic to an 

online format and successfully delivered 122 online workshops during the year, reaching more 

than 1,600 people. To find out more visit www.lgo.org.uk/training. 

 

Yours sincerely, 

 

 
Michael King 

Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman 

Chair, Commission for Local Administration in England

Page 72

https://www.lgo.org.uk/your-councils-performance
http://www.lgo.org.uk/training


Gosport Borough Council 

For the period ending: 31/03/22  

                                                             

 

 

 

 

Complaints upheld 

 

The Ombudsman carried out no detailed investigations during this period 

 

Compliance with Ombudsman recommendations 

 

No recommendations were due for compliance in this period 

 

 

Satisfactory remedy provided by the organisation 

 

The Ombudsman did not uphold any detailed investigations during this period 

 

 

Page 73



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Meeting of the Sub Board held on 30 June 2022
	Minutes

	6 Audit Progress report 1st April to 19th August 2022
	7.Appendix A Internal Audit Progress Report Aug 2022 MS1

	7 Auditors Annual Report 2020/21
	Appendix - 2020-21 Auditor's Annual Report (Final)
	GBC Procurement Action Plan.docx updare 2.9.22 docx

	8 Gifts & Hospitality Return for Council staff
	9 Local Government Ombudsman Review 2021/22
	9. Appendix A LGO


